
Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

January 21, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 
 
 
Invocation: 
 Pastor Jerry Dahlke, North Gate City Church 
   
 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. January 7, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
 
 
2. Presentation: 

2.1.  Kelso School District Levy 
 
 
3. Consent Items: 

3.1. Consult Contract – Talley Way Bridge Scour Project 
3.2. Auditing of Accounts 
 
 

4. Citizen Business: 
 
 

5. Council Business: 
 
 
6. Action/Motion Items: 

 
 

7. Workshop: 
7.1. 2014 Budget Goals and Action Plan 
 

 



Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

January 21, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

Other Items: 
 City Manager Report 
 Staff/Dept Head Reports 
 Council Reports 
 Other Business 
 Executive Session 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                        January 7, 2014 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Major Dave Davis, Salvation Army gave the invocation.  Mayor David Futcher led the 
flag salute.  The Regular Meeting of the Kelso City Council was called to order by Mayor 
David Futcher.  Councilmembers in attendance were: Futcher, Myers, McDaniel, 
Schimmel, Roberson and Archer.   
  
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
Roberson, ‘Approve the Minutes of the 12/17/13 Regular Meeting,’ motion carried, all 
voting yes. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE: 
 
City Clerk Brian Butterfield swore in the following individuals to the Kelso City Council: 
 
 Rick Roberson, Council Position #1 
 Todd McDaniel, Council Position #2 
 Jared Franklin, Council Position #3 

 
ELECTION OF COUNCIL OFFICERS: 
 
Mr. Butterfield opened the floor for nominations for Mayor.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember McDaniel, ‘Nominate David 
Futcher for Mayor.’  Mr. Butterfield asked if there were other nominations.  Hearing 
none, Mr. Butterfield closed the nominations.  Motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
Mayor Futcher opened the floor for nominations for Deputy Mayor.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember Archer, ‘Nominate 
Councilmember Myers for Deputy Mayor.’  Mayor Futcher asked if there were other 
nominations.  Hearing none, the nominations were closed.  Motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Appointments/Reappointments – Boards & Commissions: Upon motion by 
Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Approve the Consent 
Agenda.’  City Manager Steve Taylor requested that the reappointment for Larry 
Alexander to the ‘Big Idea’ Board be added to the list. Motion carried, including the ‘Big 
Idea’ Board reappointment, all voting yes.  The reappointments are as follows: 
 
 Lodging Tax Committee 

o Bill Marcum, Term to End 12/31/2014 
o Cindy Keeney, Term to End 12/31/2014 
o Paul Thornton, Term to End 12/31/2014 
o Syed Pasha, Term to End 12/31/2014 

 



Kelso City Council                               -2-                                  1/07/14 Regular Meeting 
 
 Park Board 

o Dan Jones, Term to End 12/31/2017 
o Jerry Phillips, Term to End 12/31/2017 

 Highlander Festival 
o Cory Mugaas, Term to End 12/31/2017 
o Larry Alexander, Term to End 12/31/2017 

 Library Board 
o Kelly Sims, Term to End 12/31/2018  

 Cowlitz County Mosquito Control District 
o  Betty Wilson, Term to End 01/01/2016 

 ‘Big Idea’ Board 
o Larry Alexander, Term to End to 12/31/2015 

 
CITIZEN BUSINESS: 
 
Nicole Mackey, 1106 S. 3rd Ave., spoke about a policy for the cleanup of graffiti. 
 
Johann Peters, 512 West Main Street, Longview, spoke about a facade improvement 
program for businesses that are affected by the redirection of traffic as a result of the 
West Main Realignment project. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
2014 City Council Standing Committee/Board Assignments:  With the consensus of 
the Council, the following Council Boards & Commissions Assignments were made: 
 
 SWEDC     

o Rick Roberson and Jared Franklin  
 Airport Authority    

o David Futcher and Gary Archer (Alternate) 
 CAP Board     

o Jared Franklin and Todd McDaniel 
  CEDC Executive Board   

o Steve Taylor 
  CEDC      

o Rick Roberson 
  City Audit     

o Dan Myers, Gary Schimmel and Todd McDaniel (Alternate)                                                
  Cowlitz Transit Authority Board  

o Todd McDaniel, Rick Roberson and Gary Schimmel (Alternate) 
  CWCOG     

o Dan Myers and Rick Roberson  
   Disability Board    

o David Futcher 



Kelso City Council                               -3-                                  1/07/14 Regular Meeting 
 
   911 E-Board    

o Steve Taylor 
   Cowlitz County 911 Council   

o Gary Schimmel and Gary Archer (Alternate) 
   KDRA    

o Jared Franklin and Gary Archer 
   Fire Pension Board   

o David Futcher, Brian Butterfield and Traci Howard 
   Library Board   

o Gary Schimmel and Jared Franklin 
   Lodging Tax Advisory 

o Todd McDaniel 
   Multi-Agency Coordinating Group 

o Steve Taylor and David Futcher 
   Park Board Liaison 

o Gary Archer and Gary Schimmel (Alternate) 
    Public Health     

o Jared Franklin 
    Sewer Operating Board (TRRWA)  

o Public Works Director and Steve Taylor (Alternate) 
    Solid Waste Technical 

o Public Works Director, Steve Taylor and Dan Myers (Alternate) 
   Metropolitan Planning Organization   

o Mike Kardas and Rick Roberson (Alternate) 
   RTPO 

o Mike Kardas and Rick Roberson (Alternate) 
  ‘Big Idea’ Board  

o Gary Archer and Gary Schimmel (Alternate) 
   Cowlitz County Government Summit 

o Dan Myers, Gary Archer and Rick Roberson (Alternate)  
   Pathways 2020  

o Steve Taylor 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
The Council convened into Executive Session at 6:29 p.m. to discuss litigation. The 
Executive Session is expected to last approximately 5 minutes.  The city attorney was 
present. 
  
The Council reconvened into Regular Session at 6:36 p.m. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS Continued: 
 
 



Kelso City Council                               -4-                                  1/07/14 Regular Meeting 
 
NPDES Phase II 2013-2018 Coalition Settlement:  City Attorney Janean Parker briefed 
the Council on the Coalition’s recommendation for a proposed settlement. Upon motion 
by Councilmember Myers, seconded by Councilmember Archer, ‘Enter into the 
settlement terms as described by the city attorney.’ Lengthy discussion followed. Motion 
carried, all voting yes.   
 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Resolution No. 14-1108 – Master Fee Schedule Amendment:  The Deputy Clerk read 
the proposed resolution by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Archer, seconded 
by Councilmember Myers, ‘Pass Resolution No. 14-1108, ‘A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE 
CITY’S MASTER FEE SCHEDULE.’ Discussion followed.  Councilmembers Futcher, 
Franklin, Myers, Schimmel, Archer and Roberson voted yes.  Councilmember McDaniel 
voted no.  Motion passed, 6 to 1. 
   
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Taylor:   1) Suggested having the 2014 Goal Priority Discussion workshop during 
the next regular council meeting. With consensus of the Council, the workshop was 
scheduled for the 1/21/14 Regular Council Meeting.  2) Announced that the South Kelso 
Neighborhood Cleanup event is scheduled for January 20, 2014. Those interested are to 
meet at the Wallace Elementary Gym at 9:00 a.m. 3) Gave a brief update regarding the 
search for a new Public Works Director. 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
 
Community Development Director/City Engineer Mike Kardas:  1) Provided an 
update on the detours pertaining to the West Main Realignment project.  Discussion 
followed.   
 
Anthony Rogers, Tire Exchange, 111 SW 1st Ave., spoke from the audience regarding 
lost revenue due to insufficient access caused by the West Main Realignment 
construction detours.  Mr. Kardas asked him to stay after the meeting to discuss further. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Gary Archer:  spoke about the litter throughout the city.   
 
Todd McDaniel:  Commented that Councilmembers are encouraged to attend the 
Community Transit Authority facility’s Master Plan Workshop.  The workshop is 
scheduled for January 15th, at 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m., and will be held at Longview City 
Hall. 
 



Kelso City Council                               -5-                                  1/07/14 Regular Meeting 
 
Jared Franklin:  Thanked everyone for being so welcoming. 
 
Dan Myers:  No report. 
 
Gary Schimmel:  No report. 
 
Rick Roberson: Provided an update on the South Kelso Neighborhood Association. 
 
David Futcher:  1) Welcomed Mr. Franklin to the Council.  2) Thanked everyone for the 
opportunity to serve another term as Mayor. 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                                 MAYOR 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Kelso School District 
Levy Presentation 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Kelso School District Superintendent Rob 
MacGregor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin:   
 
For Agenda of: January 21, 2014 
 
Originator:    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
A representative from the Kelso School District will present information on the current maintenance 
and operations levy. The ballots for this levy will be mailed on or around January 24, 2014 and must 
be returned to a ballot drop-box or postmarked by February 11, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Talley Way Bridge Scour Analysis and Remediation 
Design-Consultant Scope and Professional Services 
Agreement-H.W Lochner Inc.  
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Michael Kardas, PE 
Community Development Director/City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: Comm. Dev/Engineering  
 
For Agenda of: January 21, 2014  
 
Cost of Item: $102,382.00   
 
City Manager: Steve Taylor__________________ 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
 
Consultant scope and fee estimate 
Professional Services Agreement 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
As a result of a Washington Department of Transportation underwater inspection of the Talley Way Bridge a 
new scour condition on pier 2 was identified. The report recommended a complete scour evaluation and repair 
be performed to protect the bridge. The attached scope of work provides for the identified hydraulic analysis as 
well as the necessary environmental permitting and contract document preparation.   
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The cost of the contract is within the funds available in the Bridge Maintenance and Repair Reserve Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommends Council authorize the City Manager to execute the professional services agreement with 
H.W. Lochner.   

































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Kelso 2014 Budget 
Goals and Action Plan Workshop 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: January 21, 2014 
 
Originator: Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Kelso 2014 Budget Goals and Action Plan Memorandum 
2014 Budget Goals & Actions Plan 
2014 City Council Retreat Summary 
SWOT Analysis 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Please see attached memo. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Achieve consensus on goals and actions following discussion. 



Administration Department 
Steve Taylor, City Manager 

 
203 S. Pacific Avenue, PO Box 819 Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

 
 

City Manager’s Office Phone:  360-423-1371    Fax:  360-423-6591 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  City Councilmembers 
 
FROM:  Steve Taylor, City Manager 
 
DATE:  January 21, 2014 
 
RE:  Kelso 2014 Budget Goals and Action Plan Discussion 
 
 
Last May, the Council and department heads participated in a retreat facilitated by Gregg 
Dohrn where pending issues, community strengths and challenges, and future opportunities 
were discussed.  Additionally, goals and actions for the 2013-2014 budget cycle were reviewed 
and approved, and staff has crafted its work plan to achieve or make considerable progress 
toward through the remainder of the cycle.  Staff is currently refining the 2014 work plan, and a 
Council workshop has been called for January 21st to review the priorities and provide 
additional input on the actions necessary to achieve the identified goals.   
 
Included below are the strategic priorities identified by staff and management’s discussion of 
the priorities that informed the development of the goals contained within the draft 2014 Goals 
and Action Plan.  Attached to this memo are the minutes from the May retreat where short, 
medium, and long-term priorities were identified and discussed.  Staff has sought to include 
and address all of the short-term priority themes within the Goals and Action Plan.  Also 
attached are the summarized SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, & Threats) 
analyses provided by Council and staff for the retreat. 
 
The workshop will be an opportunity to identify and discuss additional work plan items and set 
priorities given the limited time, staff and financial resources available to accomplish initiatives 
that are in addition to day-to-day operations.  As an outcome of the workshop, staff is seeking 
approval of the 2014 Goals and Actions Statement as it may be revised in order to be 
incorporated into departmental work plans. 
 
 
 
 
 
  



2 
 

Summary of Department Head Strategic Priorities 
(from May 3, 2013 retreat) 

 
• Empowering and mentoring staff to achieve the City’s long-range goals.  Enhance cross-

training and increase staffing flexibility to provide tools that increase productivity. 
 

• Adequate staffing to provide expected levels of service and maintenance of City assets. 
 

• Reduction of crime and/or the fear of crime in the community. 
 

• Analyze and consider ramifications of increased loss of state-shared revenue and new 
potential unfunded mandates from the State. 
 

• Review the potential exposure of abusive public records requests. 
 

• Consider impacts of losing a major tax revenue generator.  How can the City encourage 
greater economic diversity and discourage the loss of business. 
 

• Plan for future public facility needs (Library, Community Center, Park Development) 
 

• Provide a streamlined, applicant-friendly development process with clear, consistent rules 
and reasonable fee-structure based on cost-recovery.   
 

• Encourage new development through zoning and land use regulations consistent with the 
needs of the market. 
 

• Develop capital facility plans with funding and regulatory roadmaps that clearly delineate 
priority projects. 
 

• Establish and fund an effective street maintenance & preservation program. 
 

• Enhance the City’s image and beautify both public and private spaces. 
 

• Strengthen and ensure the solvency of the City’s public utilities. 

  



3 
 

Management’s Discussion of Strategic Priorities 
(from May 3, 2013 retreat) 

 
 

Financial Forecasting – taking inventory of revenue and operating expenditure trends.  Dealing 
with the policy issues surrounding tomorrow’s deficits today. 
 
Service Consolidation – Are there additional public services currently provided by City where 
partnering with the County, Longview, or smaller cities makes sense? 
 
Major Infrastructure Projects – (Minor Road Reservoir, S. Kelso RR crossing) how will they be 
financed? How can we employ an effective legislative effort? 
 
Future Growth – What avenues should we pursue?  What do we want to look like? What 
constraints do we have? What are we best positioned for?  (New subdivisions, Redevelopment, 
Regional Commercial Hub, Annexation) 
 
Investment in Technology – enhance online presence; increase productivity in service delivery 
and customer interface with technology 
 
Priority Areas of Investment – Public safety, infrastructure maintenance, parks/recreation 
 



 
2014 Budget Goals & Actions Plan 

 
 
Goal:  Well-maintained, reliable public infrastructure systems that encourage economic 
growth and enhance community quality. 
 

• Action:  Complete current phase of West Main Realignment Project. 
• Action:  Complete Water-Sewer-Drainage utility rate study. 
• Action:  Administer first full Transportation Benefit District funding cycle and deploy 

new resources in the most optimum fashion. 
• Action:  Enhance maintenance staffing levels in Public Works Department. 
• Action:  Evaluate legislative advocacy service options to assist in securing state and 

federal resources for critical infrastructure and community improvements. 

 
Goal:  Community renewal and economic growth that provides sustainable resources for 
public services and facilities. 
 

• Action:  Draft, review, and adopt updated Comprehensive Plan and commence update 
to the City’s Development Code. 

• Action:  Adopt Shoreline Master Plan Update. 
• Action:  Manage implementation of the South Kelso Revitalization Strategies through 

resources provided by the Americorps Vista program. 
• Action:  Explore and implement improvements to the City’s nuisance and graffiti 

abatement effort. 
• Action:  Identify planning opportunities and inventory of funding resources for 

community revitalization in priority areas of Kelso (West Main, Town Center, South 
Kelso). 

 
Goal:  Consistent, effective delivery of Kelso city services that meets or exceeds standards of 
professionalism and accountability. 
 

• Action:  Present 5-6 year Financial Forecast and draft corresponding department 
business plans. 

• Action:  Completion of City Master Fee Schedule with updated fees established to 
recover the cost of the services provided. 

• Action:  Enhance customer service delivery through technology investments in utility 
billing, business licensing, permitting, and public information. 

• Action:  Evaluate feasibility of public safety service enhancements (Traffic unit; 
community policing; targeted enforcement). 

• Action:  Negotiate franchise agreements with Public Utility District and Comcast Cable. 



2 
 

 
Goal:  Be recognized for proactive and visionary regional leadership. 
 

• Action:  Continue regional outreach and participation to enhance partnership 
opportunities with public and private sector organizations. 

• Action:  Review city charter and evaluate potential amendments to be brought forward 
for voter consideration. 

• Action:  Facilitate expanded partnership with the SW Regional Airport in the provision of 
operational and administrative support. 

 
  



City of Kelso, Washington 
City Council Retreat Summary 

May 3, 2013 
 

On Friday May 3, 2013 the Kelso City Council and the City Management Team participated in a 
retreat to identify and discuss City Council priorities. A copy of the agenda for the retreat is 
attached. The retreat was facilitated by Gregg Dohrn, the City’s planning consultant and he 
prepared this written summary of the outcomes. The participants included: 

 
Mayor David Futcher;  
Councilmember Gary Archer; 
Councilmember Gary Schimmel; 
Councilmember Todd McDaniel; 
Councilmember Kim Lefebvre; 
Councilmember Dan Myers; 
Councilmember Rick Roberson; 
Steve Taylor, City Manager; 
Nancy Malone, Planning Manager; 
Mike Kardas, Director of Community Development; 
David Sypher, Director of Public Works; 
Brian Butterfield, Finance Director; 
Andrew Hamilton, Police Chief; 
Cindy Donaldson, Librarian; and 
Gregg Dohrn, G. R. Dohrn and Associates. 

 
During the morning session the focus of the proceedings was on the identification of potential 
priorities. This included a report by the City Manager (see attached), brief reports by City 
Department Directors, as well as a review of the SWOT analysis results prepared by the City 
Council and City Staff (see attached). During the afternoon session the City Council identified 
short term priorities to be accomplished during the remainder of the current biennial budget over 
the next 12-18 months, medium term priorities over the next five years, and long term priorities 
for the next 5-10 years. The following is a brief summary of the outcome of this discussion. As 
the participants review this summary, please do not hesitate to contact Steve Taylor if there are 
revisions that need to be made to more accurately reflect the outcomes of the discussions. 
 
Short Term Priorities 
 
The following were identified as priorities of the City Council to be accomplished during the 
remainder of the biennial budget over the next 12-18 months. The following are intended to 
complement the list of City management priorities handed out by the City Manager (see 
attached).  The City Council agreed in adding the following items to the short term priority list 
that it is with the understanding that the following can be accomplished within existing budget 
authority. If not, the City Manager will notify the City Council of the resources required to 
complete these short term priorities and if sufficient resources aren’t allocated, then the items 
will be moved to the medium range priority list and are subject to future budget allocations. 



 City of Kelso, Washington 
City Council Retreat Summary 

May 3, 2013 
 

 
 

G. R. Dohrn and Associates 
Community Planning, Economic Development, and Facilitation Services 

(206) 679-7507 or greggdohrn@comcast.net 

Please note that the following items have been numbered for ease of reference and that the 
numbers do not convey a relative sense of priority. 
 

1. Proactively market the community and encourage new businesses to locate in Kelso. This 
can be accomplished through such actions as opening and supporting the new visitor’s 
information center. 
 

2. Work closely with West Kelso businesses especially during the construction of Phase 1 
of the W Main Street alignment project. 
 

3. Look for opportunities to increase City revenues without raising rates. 
 

4. Update the City Development Regulations to further streamline the development process. 
 

5. Look for further opportunities to utilize new technologies and equipment to provide 
services more efficiently or cost effectively. This may include the preparation or updating 
of a City Technology Plan. 
 

6. Review the Six Year Capital Improvement Plan to make sure that it is complete, and that 
it identifies not only the cost of priority projects but also the source of funding to pay for 
them. In addition, it is a priority that the Capital Improvement Plan be formatted so that it 
is a resource for the public and is readily available within the community. 
 

7. The City Manager is authorized to fill the funded but vacant sewer/water position and the 
police department position provided that the timing and process for filling the positions 
shall be determined by the City Manager in consultation with the appropriate Department 
Directors. 
 

8. Support the successful implementation of the Transportation Benefit District. 
 

9. Prepare and implement strategies to effectively utilize volunteers and community service 
organizations to improve the appearance of the city. 
 

10. Research potential strategies for improving the effectiveness of code enforcement 
including such measures as requiring the owners of rental properties to get a business 
license for each property. 
 

11. Initiate and complete a process to update the City Comprehensive Plan. 
 

12. Continue to develop and implement the City’s Legislative Strategy with a particular 
emphasis on securing funding for priority City projects and gaining relief from unfunded 
state mandates. 
 



 City of Kelso, Washington 
City Council Retreat Summary 

May 3, 2013 
 

 
 

G. R. Dohrn and Associates 
Community Planning, Economic Development, and Facilitation Services 

(206) 679-7507 or greggdohrn@comcast.net 

13. Actively support growth and development at Exit 36 off of I-5. 
 

14. Update the City Parks Plan. 
 

15. Implement the S. Kelso Neighborhood Plan. 
 

Medium Term Priorities 
 
The following were identified as priorities to be accomplished over the next 2-5 years with the 
understanding that additional resources may need to be allocated through ensuing budget cycles. 
Once again the numbering is for reference purposes only and does not convey a relative sense of 
priorities. 
 

1. Look for opportunities to increase City revenues without raising rates. It was noted that 
relying on increases in sales tax revenues may not be sufficient to keep up with inflation 
and as a result strategies such as raising the 1% limitation on property tax increases or 
other measures to increase property tax revenues may be required. 
 

2. Develop a comprehensive street and sidewalk improvement strategy that may be 
implemented through such measures as issuing road improvement bonds to be repaid 
with future tax revenues and/or encouraging local improvement districts. 

 
3. Promote the redevelopment of West Kelso north of the bridge. This may include changes 

to the Future Land Use Map and/or Zoning Map. 
 

4. Explore the feasibility of designating selected streets as one way streets in order to 
improve safety and emergency vehicle access. 
 

5. Develop a contingency plan for the library if it needs to move from the mall. 
 

6. Explore the feasibility of establishing and maintaining neighborhood associations in the 
City. The Highlands Neighborhood in Longview may be a model to consider. 
 

7. Develop and implement a plan to promote way finding and to improve the appearance of 
gateways into the City. 
 

8. Review and update the Capital Facilities Plan to make sure that priority projects have 
been included and that sources of funding identified. This may include, but is not limited 
to the following projects; 
 

a. Talley Way Bridge; 
 

b. South Kelso Railroad Crossing; 



 City of Kelso, Washington 
City Council Retreat Summary 

May 3, 2013 
 

 
 

G. R. Dohrn and Associates 
Community Planning, Economic Development, and Facilitation Services 

(206) 679-7507 or greggdohrn@comcast.net 

 
c. Miner Road Reservoir Replacement; and 

 
d. Phase 2 of the West Main Street Realignment Project. It was further noted that it 

may be appropriate to develop an implementation strategy that includes an 
examination of land uses, zoning, and the potential for encouraging new 
development activities consistent with a high-traffic corridor. 

 
9. Preserve the investment in City Parks by developing partnerships and funding strategies 

to stop the deferral of maintenance and to make required repairs and improvements. 
 
Long Term Priorities 
 
The following were identified as priorities to be accomplished over the next 5-10 years or more 
with the understanding that additional resources may need to be allocated through ensuing 
budget cycles. As previously stated, the numbering is for reference purposes only and does not 
convey a relative sense of priorities. 
 

1. Look for opportunities to increase City revenues. 
 

2. Develop a strategy to take advantage of the proposal to develop a high speed rail corridor 
between Seattle and Kelso. This may include actions to promote Kelso as a residential 
option for rail commuters as well as transit oriented development in the downtown.   
 

3. Explore opportunities to increase the percentage of home ownership in the City. 
 

4. Maintain a contingency plan for the location of the library if the need arises and to 
prepare a strategy to secure a permanent home for the library. 
 

5. Develop a strategy to improve access to the River Trail. This may include the 
identification of physical, legal, and financial barriers. 
 

6. Develop policies to phase out private wells and septic systems in the City. 
 

7. Develop a joint strategy with the County to address the unincorporated pockets in South 
Kelso. 
 

8. Develop strategies for increasing pride, commitment, and civic investment in the City and 
the long term redevelopment of neighborhoods. 
 

9. Update the Water System Plan to include strategies for securing adequate supplies of 
water to meet a wider range of future growth and development assumptions. 
 



 City of Kelso, Washington 
City Council Retreat Summary 

May 3, 2013 
 

 
 

G. R. Dohrn and Associates 
Community Planning, Economic Development, and Facilitation Services 

(206) 679-7507 or greggdohrn@comcast.net 

10. Improve recreational use of the Cowlitz River. 
 

The retreat concluded with a discussion of the effectiveness of City Council meetings. It was 
noted that the recent acquisition of digital tablets to implement paperless Council packets is a 
definite improvement although the Council would like continued training and support in how to 
most effectively use the equipment. The Council also noted that they appreciate written reports 
from Department Directors as opposed to verbal reports in City Council meetings. The Mayor’s 
summarization of agenda items is also greatly appreciated and the City Council noted that they 
are pleased with the hard work and accomplishments of the City Manager to date. The meeting 
was adjourned promptly at 4 pm. 

 
 

 
 

 
 






	1. - 2014-01-21
	1.1. - 2014-01-07
	2.1. - Ag Sum - School Levy Pres
	3.1. - AgSu TalleyWyBrScr 1-21-14
	3.1.2. - Lochner-Talley Way PSA 1.15.14
	7.1. - Ag Sum - Council Retreat
	7.1.2. - 2014 Draft Budget Goals - Memo 01212014
	7.1.3. - 2014 Draft Budget Goals - Work Plan 01212014
	7.1.4. - Kelso City Council Retreat Summary 05-03-13
	7.1.5. - Retreat SWOT

